PALM BEACH COUNTY YOUTH ADVISORY COUNCIL BYLAWS

ARTICLE I Name

Section 1.0 The name of this group shall be **Future Leaders United for Change** (hereafter referred to as "**Future Leaders**").

ARTICLE II

Mission Statement

Section 1.0 To be the voice for the youth of Palm Beach County (PBC) creating leaders through self-motivation, determination, and education.

ARTICLE III

Provision and Objective

- Section 1.0 Future Leaders is a recommendation from of the Birth to 22: United for Brighter Futures (Birth to 22). Future Leaders is responsible to provide input in the design, implementation and communication of an ongoing strategic plan for future community conversations, focus group discussions, interviews, surveys, youth summits (Youth Master Plan, YMP pp.40).
- Section 1.1 Future Leaders will contribute to the following Youth Master Plan's Action Areas by engaging with others in PBC (*YMP pp.33*).

A. Economic Access

- i. Mitigate the impacts of poverty on youth options
- ii. Increase affordability of basic services
- iii. Build education to employment pathways for disconnected youth

B. Parenting & Role Models

- i. Increase effective parent support programming
- ii. Increase outreach to parents through communications, natural support networks & mentors

C. Social & Emotional Supports

- i. Strengthen quality out-of-school time opportunities
- ii. Promote social and emotional learning across all environments where young people spend their time.

D. Educational Supports

- i. Promote educational equity for all students from pre-kindergarten through postsecondary education
- ii. Support access to and success in higher education for middle through post-secondary students
- iii. Increase parent, community & business involvement in education

E. Health & Wellness Supports

- i. Ensure access to healthy foods and exercise options
- ii. Expand and improve detection, prevention and intervention physical and mental health services behavioral health care access
- iii. Address teen health risks (e.g. pregnancy, obesity)

F. Removal of Community Stressors & Systemic Barriers

- i. Become a trauma sensitive community
- ii. Ensure safety & justice

ARTICLE IV Organization

- Section 1.0 Future Leaders is comprised of a diverse cadre of local residents of Palm Beach County aged 11 to 22. Future Leaders will seek to engage youth including those who are court involved, experiencing homelessness, in foster care, racial minorities, have care-giving responsibilities, LGBTQ+, idle/disconnected, undocumented, and with special needs (Appendix YMP, PP170).
- Section 1.1 Future Leaders consists of eleven (11) **Officers** and unlimited at-large **Members** (members), as follows:
 - a) Nine (9) elected officers including
 - 1. Christian Allen, President
 - 2. Riayona Evens, Vice-President
 - 3. Ketena Jean-Jacques, Media Chair
 - 4. Daniela Mejia, Secretary
 - 5. Maria Batista, Treasurer
 - 6. Jazzman Lezama, Sergeant-at-Arms
 - 7. Katia Mejia Lagos, Recruitment Chair
 - b) One (1) male and one (1) female representative
 - 1. Christian Allen, male representative
 - 2. Anestacha Jean-Mary, female representative
 - 3. Two alternate Steering Committee members
 - 1. Stanley Etienne, male representative
 - 2. Tia Brisson, female representative
 - 4. At-large Members are anyone other than Officers.
- Section 1.2 To join Future Leaders, youth needs to submit an application, attend meetings regularly, and comply with Future Leaders rules. **Officers** and **Members** have freedom of speech to bring and discuss items and can vote in all areas. They will participate in workgroups and community events.

ARTICLE V Attendance

Section 1.0 Officers and Members are expected to participate in all meetings. In the event of any scheduling conflicts the Outreach and Community Programming Division (OCP) designated staff must be informed by phone, text or email. OCP designated staff will support Future Leaders in an effort to minimize any scheduling barriers.

Section 1.1 Future Leaders will be allowed five (5) absences annually, as determined by sign in/ call in. Exhausting five (5) absences allocated within one (1) year may require removal from Future Leaders.

ARTICLE VI Recruitment, Admission and Dismissal

Section 1.0 Recruitment

The Recruitment Chair leads social media promotions, community outreach for Birth to 22, and other marketing recruitment efforts identified by Future Leaders to attract prospective members. Social media contents must be approved by OCP designated staff. All members are recommended to assist the Recruitment Chair as needed.

Section 1.1 Admission

Prospective members may complete an application online or submit a paper application to OCP. All applicants are required to be interviewed prior to acceptance.

Section 1.2 Dismissal

Youth Services Department (YSD) will make final decisions as it pertains to inappropriate behavior, excessive absence and dismissal if the President/ Vice-President fail to address the breach within 48 hours of knowledge of the behavior. Future Leaders can report inappropriate behavior to the President, Vice President, and/or OCP designated staff.

ARTICLE VII

Nominations and Elections

- Section 1.0 Future Leaders will convene to nominate and be elected by their peers. The first term nominations will be conducted at the Annual Meeting. The nominees for each position shall be announced. Nominees shall verbally state whether they choose to accept or decline the nomination.
- Section 1.1 Elections shall be by ballot at the Annual Meeting. Election shall take place on the ninth (9th) month of each calendar year; in the subsequent meeting all elected or re-elected officers shall take their pledge of acceptance.
- Section 1.2 Future Leaders shall form a committee to facilitate the transfer of power. It is YSD recommendation to invite a prestigious PBC community member to administer the pledge.

ARTICLE VIII

Duties and Responsibilities

Section 1.0 In order to meet the objectives identified by Birth to 22 in the areas of Economics Access, Parenting and Role Models, Social-Emotional supports, Education Supports, Health and Wellness Supports, Removal of Community Stressors and Systemic Barriers elected officers and members have accepted the duties and responsibilities stated below.

Section 1.1 Steering Committee Representative(s):

- a) Attend Steering Committee meetings as a liaison,
- b) Give report updates to Steering Committee and Future Leaders,
- c) Be the voice and advocate for all PBC youth,
- d) Bring requests from Steering Committee to Future Leaders for implementation and follow through.

Section 1.2 The president shall:

- a) Facilitate Future Leaders meetings,
- b) Attend Future Leaders meetings and related events,
- c) Keep members focused and on track during meetings, and
- d) Administer directives issued by Steering Committee.

Section 1.3 The vice-president shall:

- a) Co-facilitate Future Leaders meetings,
- b) Perform the duties of the President in the absence of or at the request of the president,
- c) Fill the unexpired term if a vacancy occurs in the office of President,
- d) Keep members focused and on track during meetings.

Section 1.4 Treasurer shall:

- a) Work with community leaders to identify scholarships, prizes, and other resources
- b) Provide a financial report during meetings, as needed,
- c) Produce annual operating budget, and,
- d) Track expenditures.

Section 1.5 Secretary shall:

- a) Transcribe meeting minutes,
- b) Call roll,
- c) Electronically submit minutes to the OCP designated staff,
- d) Read minutes into record at each meeting,
- e) Facilitate correspondence to Officers, and Future Leaders as appropriate.

Section 1.6 Sergeant-at-Arms:

- a) Responsible for maintaining order before, during and after all Future Leader's events,
- b) Responsible for creating and setting up- posters, banners, table displays, and other advertisement for all council events,
- c) Perform the duties of the vice-president in the absence of or at the request of the vice-president.

Section 1.7 Media chair shall:

- a) Update the Future Leaders' s social media page(s) about meetings, and events;
- b) Oversee photo and video creating process,
- c) Ensure all materials are in compliance with Future Leaders rules,

d) Ensure all contents are approved by OCP designated staff.

Section 1.8 Recruitment Chair shall:

- a) Represent Future Leaders at youth related events,
- b) Promote Future Leaders to other youth,
- c) Facilitate application process,
- d) Facilitate elections and re-elections at Annual Meeting.

Section 1.9 At-Large Members:

- a) Attend Future Leaders meetings and related events,
- b) Promotes Future Leaders,
- c) Ensure Future Leaders are mindful of all PBC youth success.
- Section 2.0 Future Leaders will not be involved in any financial transaction, exchange or selling of anything of value, nor may they make any representations on behalf of YSD or Birth to 22 without prior authorization.

ARTICLE IX Meetings

- Section 1.0 A quorum is comprised of eleven (11) Future Leaders.
- Section 1.1 The Annual Meeting shall take place on the ninth (9th) month of each year.
- Section 1.2 Future Leaders will have a minimum of six (6) meetings annually (YMP pp40), meeting on the last Tuesday of the month unless otherwise agreed. Officers may convene informally to outline Future Leaders business, workshop, group work, and training, as needed.
 - a) A confirmed list of names will be made available two (2) weeks prior to a scheduled meeting.
 - b) If the list does not reflect a minimum required for a quorum, the meeting may be postponed.
- Section 1.3 PBC Library branches may be used as hybrid meeting sites. For room(s) reservation, a request must be place in advance with OCP designated staff to schedule with the Library. A confirmation email or text message will be send to Future Leaders after the room is booked.
- Section 1.4 Future Leaders are to treat PBC property with respect, all areas are to be clean before exiting, and all furniture returned to required formation.